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Staff Report 
TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Jennifer Hanson, General Manager 

DATE: March 23, 2022 

SUBJECT:  USFS Owned Campgrounds 

ADMINISTRATION 

RECOMMENDATION:  
Receive a status update on the expiration of the Special Use Permit for 
Campground and Related Granger-Thye Concessions (Special Use Permit) 
between the United States Department of Agriculture, Forest Service (USFS) and 
the District.  

BACKGROUND: 
The District executed the Special Use Permit for Campground and Related 
Granger-Thye Concessions (Special Use Permit). The term of the Special Use 
Permit is for three years and expired on December 31, 2021. 

The Special Use Permit allowed for the District’s operation of the following 
campgrounds:  

• East Meadows Campground
• Pass Creek/Overflow Campgrounds
• Pass Creek and Woodcamp Boat Launches
• Aspen and Woodcamp Picnic Areas
• Jackson Point Campground
• Woodcamp Campground
• Fir Top Campground
• Findley Campground
• Jackson Creek and Canyon Creek Campgrounds
• Dispersed camping at Milton and Bowman Corridor
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These recreational facilities are part of the FERC Yuba-Bear Project #2266. The 
District is aware of no requirement of the Yuba-Bear FERC Project license or 
Federal Law or Regulation that would require the District to pay USFS to operate 
USFS Facilities. In fact, under the current Recreaiton Plan, it state’s that the 
District is only responsible for the construction and implementation of the 
recreation improvements described in the Plan. The District fulfilled this obligation 
many years ago and the Recreation Plan provides for no further obligation for the 
District to operate the facilties located on USFS property. With that said, the 
District has always indicated that the District is willing to support the operation of 
the facilties if a reasonable agreement could be reached. 
 
The District notified the USFS on September 13, 2021, that the District did not 
intend to enter into a new Special Use Permit. The primary reason for this action 
was related to ongoing concerns related to fire risk associated with the terms and 
conditions of the Special Use Permit. In June of 2021, the District requested 
permission to prohibit open campfires at the campgrounds due to extreme drought, 
lack of water at some of the facilities, and consistent with restrictions in place at 
other District-owned facilities, including those adjacent to the facilities referenced 
above, and consistent with the restrictions placed on USFS campground facilities 
in the Lake Tahoe Basin Management Unit. The USFS denied this request (see 
attached letter).  
 
Due to fire danger that increased throughout June, and after multiple meetings and 
phone calls to discuss the District’s concerns to no avail, the District sent a letter 
on June 28, 2021, to the USFS that the District would enact Special Use Permit 
Section III.G. Health, Safety and Environmental Protection and would be 
prohibiting open campfires.  
 
In addition to concerns related to fire safety, the District also expressed concerns 
related to Special Use Permit, Section III Rights and Liabilities: The section of the 
agreement assigns all risk and liability for any fire or other natural disaster to the 
District. The current language is so broad in fact that it currently assigns risk and 
liability for acts of God to the District, including the requirement for the District to 
pay fire suppression costs on and off of USFS property. This clause is particularly 
concerning due to the USFS’s denial of the District’s request to prohibit open 
campfires when there were significant drought conditions and the District had 
limited and/or no water sources to even put out a small fire.  It should be noted that 
the two worst fire seasons on record were in 2020 and 2021. 
 
Subsequent to providing notice to the USFS, the District worked with the USFS to 
transition the campgrounds back to the USFS. During a November 15, 2021 
meeting between the District and the USFS, the USFS indicated that they were 
willing to enter into a new agreement that addressed the District’s concerns to the 
best of their ability. During that meeting, the District provided three areas of 
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concern that would need to be addressed to allow the District to enter into a new 
agreement, as summarized below: 
 

• Fire Restrictions: The District would have the authority to implement fire 
restrictions within the campgrounds as determined necessary by the District 
to address public safety.  

• Use Rates: The District would be able to establish use rates consistent with 
the regional market for campgrounds and the other campgrounds owned 
and operated by the District. The current rate allowed by the USFS is $24 
per night for tent camping, while the District charges $39 per night for 
camping. The District established our rates based on a market study 
conducted and in consideration of sufficient revenue recovery to pay for the 
cost to operate the facility.  

• Special Use Permit, Section III Rights and Liabilities: This section would 
require revision to limit District liability to those actions reasonably under the 
control of the District.  
 

After that meeting, the USFS indicated that they were unable to address any of the 
concerns raised by NID in a new agreement. As such, the District determined that 
it would be beneficial to move forward with the transition and that the District would 
be willing to support the USFS operation of the campgrounds at an annual amount 
deemed to be reasonable and appropriate.  
 
Subsequent to these conversations, the USFS has requested the District pay 
$457,420 for annual operations, with the actual total due to be decreased by 
revenue received from use fees. The District countered with $150,000 cash plus 
the continued operation of the water system that provides water to the 
campgrounds (annual estimated cost between $25,000 and $35,000). This 
proposal was reflective of the following:  
 

• USFS proposal is 25% more than the annual cost for the District to operate 
the same campgrounds during the 2021 recreation season.  

• The USFS nightly campsite rate of $24.00/night is significantly lower than 
the $39.00/ night rate charged by NID in the immediate vicinity, with equal 
or better occupancy rates.  

• The District cannot justify payment of $457,420 in part because that amount 
represents a subsidy of higher than necessary operating costs and lower 
than reasonable revenue. 

 
The USFS has not responded to this offer but has instead engaged at a political 
level.  
 
Staff now requests input from the Board regarding any further negotiations.  
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BUDGETARY IMPACT:  
The level of fiscal impact associated with any direction will be determined once any 
final agreement is made.   
 
Attachments: 
Correspondence related to the matter. 
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